HA-239 1879

Cassilly-Robinson House
112 E. Broadway

Bel Air

Private

One of the best Queen Anne houses in Bel Air, the house
was built in 1879 by Jacob Bull, Bel Air's Master Builder.
Originally a smaller and simpler house, it was expanded in the
Queen Anne manner in the 1890's for Thomas Hall Robinson.
Particularly interesting are the posts and brackets on the front
porch and the two story bay window to the east.
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3 DESCRIPTION B
CONDITION CHECK ONE CHECK ONE
—_EXCELLENT __DETERIORATED —UNALTERED }_(OROGINAL SITE
X Goop —RUINS X_ALTERED —MOVED DATE
__FAIR —UNEXPOSED

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

This large and irregular Queen Anne style house is at 112 E.
Broadway in the Town of Bel Air, Harford County, Maryland. It is two
and a half stories high, five bays wide, sided in shiplap. Interior
evidence and local legend suggest that the original house was smaller
and less ornate. It was probably a (east) side hall plan which would
be the western three bays. Queen Anne houses of this size were not
built in Bel Air in 1879. Thomas Robinson probably added the eastern
two bays and the Queen Anne style in the 1890's. The house is composed
of the front block one room deep and the back building, originally
one room wide and two rooms deep. The kitchen was removed by the
Cassillys and the (west) side porch was enclosed to serve as a kitchen.

The slate gable roof has a steep pitch with several ridge lines
and gables., Its pitch is broken by four shed roofed dormers, one
in back, and two on the east side.

The front (south) elevation has three bays on the west (topped
by the dormer) and two bays to the east which project slightly and are
topped by a gable with fish scale shingles and three windows, the center
being larger.

The front (south) porch is hipped roofed, carried on groups of
chamfered posts on blocks. The carved brackets are pierced by a
trefoil. Similar brackets without the trefoil are at right angles to
the posts and support the porch cornice.

The west elevation of the front block is blind save for a pair
of widely spaced windows on the shingled gable.

The east elevation has a two story hexagonal bay window in its
south bay. The second story is slightly stepped back and a dentil
band runs under the molded cornice at each level. North of that is a
two bay section with a dormer centered (the other dormer is centered
over the bay window). The first story is a small porch carried on
chamfered posts.

The rear (north) elevation is quite irregular, showing main block,
back building, and additions and enclosed porches. The shed roofed
addition and the covered ramp entrance (east of center) occupy the
position of the demolished kitchen.

The fenestration is mixed. The back windows are 6/6; the first
story front windows are the long 2/4; other windows are Queen Anne:
central pane surrounded by many small panes up and single large pane
down. Major windows front & (east) side have wooden louvered shutters.
The windows of the double bay once had them too.

The main entrance is in the center bay of the south elevation. A
pair of glass over panel doors are topped by a tripartite transom with
a long center pane flanked by small windows composed of two vertical

anes.
i A pair of corbelled-cap chimneys break the roofline in the front
block, one inside the west gable and one astride the ridge line in the
middle of the east section.

As it stands today the front block has a center hall with a closed
string dog-leg Queen Anne staircase rising against the east wall. The

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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__INVENTION
SPECIFIC DATES 1879 BUILDER/ARCHITECT Jacob Bull

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

This house, or a portion of it, is the second house Jacob Bull
built on the large lot he and his wife Mary bought from Dr. William
Munnikhuysen in 1877 (36/41). The house next door to the west was built
in time to appear on the 1878 Map, where it was listed as Bull's
residence. In March 1879 Bull began to build this house. To do so he
mortgaged his house to Stevenson A, Williams for $800. 1In 1881 he sold
his residence to James H. File for $1,100 (42/456), possibly because he
had not sold this house. One speculates that Bull then lived in this
house, which was, if not smaller, then probably less ornate, until he
sold it to Thomas H. Robinson in 1885 (53/298). The house probably

onsisted of the west three bays with the back portion and had a (east)
side hall plan.

Thomas Hall Robinson was born near Hickory, March 2, 1860, the son
of Dr. Samuel S. Robinson and his wife Mary. He studied law in the
office of Henry D. Farnandis, the grandson of Henry Dorsey. In
September 1884 he married Clara Cain, the daughter of James M. Cain of
Hickory. It was in February of the next year that they bought this house.

In 1891 and again in 1901 Robinson was elected to the Maryland Senate.
Prominent in Democratic party politics, he was five times a delegate to
the National Convention, Chairing the delegation in 1920 and 1924. He
was Maryland Counsel for the Pennsylvania Railroad and, after 1894,
President of the Second National Bank of Bel Air. He was twice elected
Attorney General of Maryland (1923, 1927) and was running for re-
election when he died.

. The Robinsons had five children: Mary Lucille (Mrs. John A.
Robinson), Mary Madeline (Mrs. Howard S. O'Neill), Mary Elizabeth (Mrs.
Francis J. Mc Ginnis of Clifton Springs, N.Y.), Thomas H. Robinson, Jr.,
and Cloe (Mrs. Ross B. Cameron).

A quarter share of the house passed to Lucille Robinson on the
death of Clara (will 21/489). Lucille was the daughter of Mary Lucille
who married Judge John A, Robinson. She died in childbirth and Lucille
(the wife of Judge Albert Close) was reared by her grandparents in this
house. Her father, John Robinson, was a native of Baltimore City, where
he attended City College and Johns Hopkins University (B.A., 1895).
After attending the University of Maryland Law School, he was admitted to
+he Harford County Bar in 1897, He served in the Spanish-American War

.5 a First Lieutenant in the Fifth Regiment, Maryland National Guard.
After the War he moved to Harford, where his father had a farm. He
practiced law and was active in the Republican Party. From 1909 to 1921
he was clerk of the Circuit Court of Harford County. Declining to run

aggﬁBINBE BﬁugB§ th%EBel Air Tlmesgsggigh he edited for a quarter of a
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balusters are turned, the newels are square and fluted up to a
carved block. Knobs adorn the tops, and pendants formerly depended
from corners. The staircase continues in the same design but
smaller scale up to the third level. The first floor woodwork is
molded: a christian door leads left (west) to the study and

right (east) to the parlor. The parlor mantel is a typical
Victorian piece with round arched opening, spandrels and cartouche,
The body is slate; the shelf is marble. The bay window lights

the parlor. The study mantel is a mid-20th century brick
replacement.

Penelled wainscotting adorns the west wall of the hall
north of the study door.

The dining room is north of the hall, its axis running east
and west for the width of the house. A large fireplace was taken
out by the Cassillys, replaced by built in cupboards from floor
to ceiling (west) and panelling with a shelf that serves as a
buffet., The panelling on the doors and dining room and hall
walls was taken from the west side porch which the Cassillys
enclosed and turned intc the kitchen after they removed the
old kitchen north of the dining room. The dining room has a
door in each wall: south to the front hall, west to the kitchen,
east to the east side porch, and north to a hall with a bathroom
to the right and to the north the ramp entrance.

Upstairs the woodwork is plain. The two bedrooms in the east
block are the main bedrooms, up three steps from the hall, A
Victorian mantel is in the south bedroom. The second story has
three bedrooms, a bath, and a laundry room. A stained glass
window (blue and translucent) is in the landing to the third floor
where there are three bedrooms.

(#7 cont'd)
Page 2 of 2
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century. He sold it in 1941 and devoted himself to his law practice.
He was appointed to an interim term as Associate Judge of the Third
Circuit in 1936. He died in Bel Air in 1957.

Thomas Hall Robinson added to this house, probably in the
1890's, judging by the Queen Anne style it now bears. He probably
added the east two bays and changed the staircase and enlarged the
dining room and added plumbing.

Mrs. Close and Howard S. O'Neill, trustee for Mrs. Clara
Robinson's estate, sold the property to John T. Fitzpatrick in 1950
(345/559). The Fitzpatricks sold it to the present owners, Mr,
and Mrs. Robert Cassilly in 1958 (515/386). The Cassillys have
made changes since they moved in. They removed the portion of the
back building which served as the kitchen and enclosed the west side
porch which is now the kitchen. They added a bathroom downstairs
in the northeast corner of the house and added a ramp entry next
to it because one of their children is confined to a wheelchair.

The fireplace in the study (the southwest room) was altered and a
modern brick mantel was installed. Solid wooden panelling was
removed from the west side porch when they enclosed it. It has been
used in the hall and on the north wall of the dining room where it
replaces a large fireplace and mantel they removed.

This house is one of the largest and most elegant homes on
East Broadway and one of the few not converted to apartments., During
Thomas Robinson's life it was a social center in Bel Air, and when
Cardinal Gibbons visited Bel Air early in the present century, he
stayed with Robinson, as legend has it in the southwest chamber on
the second floor.

(#8 cont'd)
Page 2 of 2
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TITLE: 112 E. BROADWAY

18 November 1958

John T, Fitzpatrick & Elizabeth
to

Robert R. Cassilly & Nancy

8 August 1950
Lucille Robinson Close & Albert, and
Howard S. O'Neill, trustee

to
John T. Fitzpatrick & Elizabeth
The property belonged to Clara C., Robinson,
widow of Thomas H. Robinson., By her will
(21/489) she left 1/4 to her grandaughter
Lucille and 3/4 to O'Neill in trust with
power to sell

28 February 1885

Jacob Bull and Mary
to

Thomas H. Robinson

$2,000 with buildings

1l November 1877

Dr. William Munnikhuysen & Elizabeth
to

Mary Bull, wife of Jacob

This lot and the next one to the west



MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST
21 STATE CIRCLE

SHAY HOUSE

ANMAPCLIS, MARYLAND 21401

HISTORIC SITES SURVEY FIELD SHEET
Individual Structure Survey Form

SURVEY NUMBER: HA-239

NEGATIVE FILE MUMBER:

U.S.G.S. QUAD. MAP:

'PRESENT FORMAL NAME:

UT!t{ REFERENMCES:
Zone/Easting/Northing

Cassilly
COUNTY: Harford ORIGINAL FORMAL NAME:
TTOIN: Bel Air Thomas H. Robinson House

LOCATION: 112 E. Broadway
Bel Air, Maryland 21014

PRESENT USE: Private residence

COTION NAE: Cassi1ly House

OPIGINAL USE: same
ARCEITECT/ENGINEER:
Jacob Bull

FUNCTIONAL TYPE: private residence

BUILDER/CONTRACTOR:

ONER: Robert Cassilly PHYSICAL CONDITION OF STRUCTURE:
ADDRESS: 112 E. Broadway Excellent( ) Good K)
Bel Air, Marvland 21014 Fair( ) Poor( )

ACCESSTBILITY TO PUBLIC:
Yes( ) No( ) Restricted (X)

THEME: Architecture
STYLE: Queen Anne

| LEVEL OF SIGNIFICANCE:

Local X) State( ) National( )

DATE BUILT: 1879

GENERAL DESCRIPTION:

Structural System

1. Foundation:

2. Wall Structure

A. Yood Frame:
B, Nood Pearing ‘lasonry:

C. Iron( ) D. Steel( ) E.

Wall Covering:

(82}
.

Bonding Pattern:
4. Roof Structure

B. Other:
5. Roof Covering:

6. Engineering Structure:
7. Other:
Appendages:
Mings( ) Other:
Roof Style:

Other:
Yumber of Stories: 2%
Number of Bays: 5
Approximate Dimensions: 42' x 55"

Stone( )Brick( )Concrete( )Concrete Block( )

Post and Beam( )Balloon( )

Brick( )Stone( )Concrete( )Concrete Block( )
Other:

Clapboard( )Board and Batten( )Wood Shingle( )ShiplapX)

Hovelty( }Stucco( )Sheet iletal( )Aluminum( )JAsphalt Shingle( )

Brick Veneer( )Stone Veneer( )

A. Truss: Wood( )Iron({ )Steel( )Concrete( )

Slate(x)VWood Shingle( )Asphalt Shingle( )Sheet Metal( )
Built Up( )Rolled( )Tile( )Other:

Porches (X)Towers( )Cupolas( )Dormers &) Chimneys (X)Sheds ( )Ells(.)
Gable(x)Hip( )Shed( )Flat( JMansard( )Gambrel( )Jerkinhead( )

Saw Tooth( )With Monitor( )With Bellcast( )¥ith Paranet( )With False Front( )

Entrance Location:

Other:

E. Broadway

THREAT TO STRUCTURE:

No Threat (X)Zoning( }Roads( )
Development ( )Deterioration( )
Alteration( )Other:

[TLOCAL ATTITUDES:

Positive (X)Negative( )
fixed( ) Other:




WA =]

ADDITIONAL ARCHITECTURAL OR STRUCTURAL DESCRIPTION:

Interior:

parlor Victorian mantel panel, spandrel large cartouche

marble shelf, slate (?) rect., QA windows in bay, 2/4 in front
molded woodwork, panel doors/closed string QA staircase dog-leg
turned baluster, square newels, grooves down, carved block, knobs
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dr: panel against N. wall, cupboards
second floor arch three to back/ww on
3rd floor 3 br. stained glass windows

3rd floor

3 br., bath laundry room

new replacing fireplace
2nd floor plain

in landing to

in 2nd floor
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-~
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panel in hall not orig.
are the QA features original’

ell & enclosed porch on W. side
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